Baltimore Vacants Reinvestment Council (BVRC)

Minutes

September 3, 2025
Greater Baltimore Committee
111 S Calvert St., Suite 1700

Baltimore, MD 21202, USA

12:00 am - 2:00 pm

The meeting recording can be found here: September 3rd BVRC Meeting Recording

BVRC members in attendance:

Jake Day, Secretary, Maryland Department of Housing and Community Development
(Council Chair)

Alice Kennedy, Commissioner, Baltimore City Department of Housing and Community
Development (Council Vice Chair)

Carter Reitman, Maryland Department of Planning

Faith Leach, Chief Administrative Officer, City of Baltimore

Michael Mocksten, Director, Department of Finance, City of Baltimore

Leslie McMillan, Co-Chair, BUILD

Mark Anthony Thomas, President & CEO, Greater Baltimore Committee

Matt Gallagher, President & CEO, Goldseker Foundation

Beth Blauer, Associate Vice Provost for Public Sector Innovation & Associate Professor
of Practice, Carey Business School

John Bullock, Councilman , Baltimore City Council

Stephanie Smith, Delegate, Maryland House of Delegates

Jasmin Torres, Assistant Attorney General, Maryland Office of the Attorney General
Gary McGuigan, Executive Vice President, Maryland Stadium Authority

Cory McCray, Maryland State Senator, Maryland General Assembly

Call to Order

Baltimore Vacants Reinvestment Council Chair Jake Day called the meeting to order.


https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=E_n937_5d8c

Adoption of Meeting Minutes

Chair Day called for a motion to adopt the minutes from the July 1, 2025 meeting. Upon a
motion duly made and seconded, the July 1, 2025 minutes were approved.

Monthly Production Report

Mary Colleen Buettner, staff, presented the monthly production report through the BVRC
Dashboard. Ms. McMillan asked for a clarification of the 15-year progress of new VBNSs issued.
Ms. Buettner stated that 4.6% of the 15-year projection of new VBNs issued has been
accomplished. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that the 15-year projection figure is a projection not a
goal, as City DHCD is also working to prevent new vacancies through supportive measures. Ms.
Buettner stated that the data reflects fiscal year completion and everything that has occurred
since July 1st. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that the data being reported includes all private
market work in addition to publicly funded work.

Ms. McMillan asked whether the presented demolition data is a projection or a goal. Ms.
Buettner stated that the demolition figure listed for FY26 is a goal, but that due to the different
tools made available to the City, such as funding for stabilizations, the City is able to use
demolition more strategically. CAO Leach asked whether the 200 demoilitions listed for FY26
include BVRI-funded demolitions through MSA and emergency demolition. Vice Chair Kennedy
stated that emergency demolitions were not included in the goal, but BVRI-funded demolitions
were included. CAO Leach asked if 140 BVRI-funded demolitions for FY26 were planned. Ms.
Buettner responded that 140 BVRI-funded demolitions were planned for FY26 and that the
remaining 60 from the total goal of 200 demolitions were projected based on the City’s capital
budget allocation for demolitions. Ms. McMillan asked to confirm that 140 BVRI-funded
demolitions were planned for FY26. Kari Snyder, staff, stated that 156 demolitions were funded
through BVRI for FY25/FY26. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that 140 demolitions had originally
been planned but that an additional 16 were added to the approved list. CAO Leach asked for
an average annual emergency demolition total. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that the number of
emergency demolitions has been increasing and that in the previous year the total was over
100. Chair Day asked to confirm that emergency demolitions occur for structures that do not
have VBNSs. Vice Chair Kennedy confirmed that emergency demolitions occur for buildings that
do not have VBNSs, such as after fires. CAO Leach asked to confirm whether the end of the year
demolition total would include emergency demolitions. Vice Chair Kennedy confirmed that the
end of the year demolition total includes emergency demolitions.

Ms. Buettner continued presenting the BVRC Dashboard. Ms. McMillan asked to confirm that
104 acquisitions have occurred in FY26. Ms. Buettner confirmed that 104 acquisitions have
occurred in FY26. Mr. Mocksten stated that he was excited about the August acquisition totals
and asked whether City DHCD can report additional success working with the courts on
processing acquisitions. Ms. Buettner stated that the increase in staff at City DHCD working on
in rem acquisitions has led to the increase in acquisitions. Ms. McMillan asked whether the
courts have hired additional staff, as well. Vice Chair Kennedy reported that the courts have not
yet hired additional staff, but City DHCD has onboarded new staff to support in rem acquisitions.



She also stated that City DHCD staff has been instructed to file in rem acquisition cases as
quickly as they can. Ms. McMillan stated that she inquired into the hiring at the courts due to the
funding that had been made available for additional court staff. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that
the funding was not made available to courts until July 1st, so they need to go through their
hiring process. Ms. McMillan asked whether there was an expected time by which the court
would have expanded capacity. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that the court’s hiring process would
likely take 2 to 3 months. Senator McCray asked whether the BVRC Dashboard could better
reflect whether the City’s goals were on track to be achieved. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that
City DHCD staff could review the dashboard to improve clarity. She also stated that the
presented acquisitions goal was ahead of schedule to be achieved. Ms. Buettner demonstrated
that a separate tab on the dashboard also displays year-over-year change.

Ms. Buettner continued presenting the BVRC Dashboard. Chair Day asked how many vacant
lots Baltimore City currently owns. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that the City has started a vacant
lot inventory to determine the number of city-owned vacant lots and their planned future uses.
She stated that Delivery Associates and Baltimore Green Space will be involved in the vacant
lot inventory. Chair Day stated that he is interested in the process used for determining the
buildability of vacant lots. He also asked whether the city has a disposition program for vacant
lots similar to that used for vacant structures. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that vacant lots are
included in the fixed price disposition schedule along with vacant properties and noted that
vacant lot redevelopment opportunities were included in the recent Request for Qualifications
process. She also stated that disposition totals will likely be lower than acquisition totals due to
the consolidation of lots. Ms. Buettner stated that City DHCD has been working with SDAT to
coordinate City data with SDAT assessment schedules. Vice Chair Kennedy noted that the
disposition totals are ahead of schedule to achieve the FY26 goals. Chair Day noted that the
BVRC Dashboard does a good job of reflecting whether production is progressing as needed to
achieve the fiscal year goals.

FY26 BVRI

Chair Day invited Ms. Snyder to provide an update on the FY26 Baltimore Vacants
Reinvestment Initiative (BVRI). He also stated Maryland DHCD intends to begin the FY27 BVRI
application earlier in the year than the FY26 round to allow non-profit organizations additional
time to prepare their applications.

Ms. Snyder informed the council of awards to Baltimore City DHCD, Maryland Stadium
Authority, and the Maryland Community Investment Corporation (MCIC). She informed the
Council of the property addresses funded through the BVRI-recipient organizations. Ms.
McMillan inquired into the coordination between the city and the CDO-led vacancy reduction
efforts. Ms. Snyder stated that all recipients are working on similar but distinct properties, and
one list of all properties eligible for BVRI-funding through any recipient has been created. Ms.
McMillan expressed concern regarding the permitting process for state-funded projects that the
city is unaware of. Ms. Snyder stated that the city is aware of all state-funded BVRI projects.
CAO Leach stated that all BVRI-funded properties are documented in the City’s internal
CodeMap program. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that the city and state have jointly met with the



CDO-recipients to discuss their projects. Ms. Blauer inquired as to whether the current focus
areas would change in the future. Senator McCray inquired into the areas marked as Other
VRPGs in light blue. Ms. Snyder stated that the City has determined a focus area for the
vacancy strategy in addition to the existing Impact Investment Areas called the Vacancy
Reduction Priority Geographies (VRPGs), which together are the focus areas for the vacancy
reduction effort. Chair Day stated that the combination of the Impact investment Areas and the
VRPGs is the area that the council has been considering throughout its work. Vice Chair
Kennedy confirmed that the council has focused on these areas and noted that the map
separating the Impact Investment Areas from the Other VRPGs is different than has been
presented to the Council previously. She noted that the Impact Investment Areas have been the
focus of reinvestment efforts longer than the rest of the VRPGs, so distinguishing them in
analysis may be sensible. Chair Day stated that representing the entire focus area in one color
while distinguishing the Impact Investment Areas with a hashed line may be the best graphic
representation strategy. Ms. Snyder confirmed that the map could be updated in this way for
future presentations. Senator McCray stated that he would advocate for Baltimore City Council
members in East Baltimore to emphasize the equitable distribution of focus areas. Vice Chair
Kennedy stated that the VRPG boundaries were created through analysis of vacant data,
ongoing investments, and existing projects. She stated that the statistical distribution of the
VRPGs between East and West Baltimore was fairly equitable. Senator McCray stated that
even though neighborhoods may be doing better now that does not mean investment can shift
away from them. Vice Chair Kennedy confirmed that the expectation was currently not to shift
investment away from communities in East Baltimore. Senator McCray stated that additional
neighborhoods in East Baltimore besides those currently targeted may also need investment.
Delegate Smith asked whether Broadway East was included in the priority area. Vice Chair
Kennedy stated that Broadway East is included in the VRPGs. Delegate Smith noted that the
council had begun its work by reviewing Broadway East as one of the highest vacancy
neighborhoods in the city, but that there had not been a funded BVRI group in that area. Ms.
Snyder stated that BVRI funds have been awarded to Broadway East through City DHCD and
MD Stadium Authority. Delegate Smith stated that the city may need to lead vacancy reduction
when there is not an existing community infrastructure, but that Broadway East does have
existing community infrastructure. Chair Day stated that Maryland DHCD will take the time to
work with CDO applicants who were not successful to improve their applications. Vice Chair
Kennedy stated that City DHCD can speak to the non-BVRI ongoing investment in Broadway
East. Ms. McMillan asked how many applicants applied to the FY26 BVRI round. Ms. Snyder
stated that 89 applications were submitted and 62 applications complied with the program to
move to the staff review. She also referred back to Ms. Blauer’s question about whether the
target geographies would change and stated that the VRPGs would not change significantly, but
that the target property list will change. Ms. Blauer stated that in order to determine whether
interventions are working the geographies will need to remain fixed for a set period of time. Vice
Chair Kennedy stated that the VRPGs have not shifted. Ms. Blauer stated that the Council had
not previously seen the consolidated geographies. Ms. Snyder stated that the VRPGs have not
changed, and that BVRI funding is provided within the VRPGs. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that
the entire VRPGs have been shared in previous council meetings. Mr. Thomas asked whether
the VRPGs were narrow enough to stabilize the neighborhoods block-by-block. Ms. Snyder



stated that the BVRI CDOs have listed their first phase of properties on a set of whole blocks in
a narrower geography than the entire VRPGs. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that the private
market is already working in the geographies where the CDOs are focused and many of the
CDOs have also been working in these geographies for some time. Mr. Thomas stated that a
delineation of all the neighborhoods in Baltimore based on their development needs could help
with prioritization. Vice Chair Kennedy suggested the Housing Typology maps developed by the
Baltimore City Department of Planning can serve this purpose. Ms. Blauer inquired as to how
often the Housing Typology maps are updated. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that they are updated
every 3 years, with the most recent being in 2023. She also stated that City DHCD is
considering ways to update the Housing Typology annually. Ms. Blauer stated more timely
market reports would help explain the recent precipitous drop in VBNSs.

Ms. Snyder continued presenting on the FY26 BVRI award cycle. She stated that MCIC is
managing the Request for Qualifications process for the BVRI CDO Support Fund. Ms. Blauer
asked to confirm the number of applications received for the RFQ. Ms. Snyder stated that 99
organizations submitted their information to provide consultant work to BVRI-awarded CDOs.
CAO Leach asked whether the CDOs have indicated where they need support. Ms. Snyder
stated that MCIC conducted a survey of the CDOs about their capacity needs, and the CDOs
will include a scope of work when submitting their proposals for funding to ensure that the
request aligns with their BVRI goals. Councilman Bullock asked for the average amount of BVRI
funds that each CDO has received. Ms. Snyder stated that the CDOs have not been awarded
an exact amount because the program is a pay-for-performance model in which CDOs can draw
down from a total pool of $30 million. CAO Leach asked whether a risk assessment for each
CDO was conducted prior to awards being made. Ms. Snyder stated that a competitive award
process within Maryland DHCD was conducted as with other state funding rounds. Chair Day
stated that many of the applicants’ familiarity with the State Revitalization Programs (SRPs)
allowed for the speed with which FY26 BVRI application round was conducted. Councilman
Bullock asked for a prediction of where the total funding awarded to each organization may end
up once the $30 million is exhausted. Ms. Snyder stated that organizations will likely have a
range of final award amounts based on the number of properties they intend to complete. Ms.
Blauer asked whether shifting market conditions are affecting the possible impact of BVRI
renovation subsidies. Chair Day confirmed that an increase in the cost of renovations will affect
the possible impact of funding. Ms. Blauer asked if a decrease in needed appraisal gap subsidy
will increase the possible impact of the BVRI renovation subsidies. Ms. Snyder stated that MCIC
will evaluate submitted project budgets based on the reasonableness of cost and accuracy of
appraisal gap subsidy, so over time as housing markets improve, we would expect to see the
amount needed in subsidy decrease. She also stated that MCIC and Maryland DHCD will track
subsidy needs by specific areas. Chair Day stated that the state did not want to set a per unit
subsidy, but that the reasonableness assessment by MCIC will consider the whole universe of
redevelopment projects as comparisons. Ms. Blauer stated that she was concerned about
subsidy amounts no longer meeting the reasonableness assessment due to the volatile nature
of the current housing market. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that improving housing markets will
create a need to shift subsidies to account for affordability for buyers. Ms. McMillan stated that
she is concerned about the acquisition and disposition process functioning in the targeted



geographies to avoid speculation. Ms. Snyder stated that BVRI funding can be used by CDOs to
acquire properties on the private market. Ms. McMillan stated that the pace of acquisition in the
priority geographies needs to increase. Ms. Snyder stated that Maryland DHCD intends to use
funded properties as case studies for whether the acquisition and renovation processes are
functioning properly.

Ms. Snyder continued presenting on the FY26 BVRI award cycle. Ms. Blauer asked whether
CDOs had been approved to receive funds for properties that are not VBNs. Ms. Snyder stated
that approximately 10 properties on the approved list do not have VBNSs, but have been
requested for inclusion by the CDOs. She also stated that the state is receiving photo
documentation and explanations for why those non-VBN properties should be funded. Ms.
Blauer stated that the state should analyze whether projects conducted on non-VBN properties
are easier to accomplish than those on VBN properties. She also stated that the vacancy effort
does not have a denominator since there is no way to know how many vacant properties there
truly are.

Ms. Snyder continued presenting on the FY26 BVRI award cycle. Ms. McMillan asked whether
City DHCD had been funded for 414 acquisitions. Ms. Snyder confirmed this figure. Ms.
McMillan stated that reaching this total will require an increase in acquisition production. Ms.
McMillan asked if the figures for FY25 & FY26 BVRI are reflected in the BVRC Dashboard. Ms.
Snyder stated that the data will be presented on a monthly basis at BVRC meetings until it can
be effectively incorporated into the BVRC Dashboard.

Ms. Snyder continued presenting on the FY26 BVRI award cycle. Chair Day stated that to the
extent possible introducing unsuccessful applicants into BVRI cohort meetings could be helpful.
Ms. Snyder stated that Maryland DHCD has also considered ways to provide assistance to an
emerging cohort of non-BVRI awardees. Ms. McMillan asked when BVRI awardees would
receive funds. Chair Day stated that groups would likely begin to receive funds within the next
30 days, and groups are already spending funds that will be eligible for reimbursements.

Ms. Snyder continued presenting on the FY26 BVRI award cycle. Ms. McMillan asked whether
the state is analyzing their legacy homeownership repair grants to ensure that the program is
running as intended because she has heard reports of delays in funding provision. Ms. Snyder
stated there are city and state legacy homeowner support programs, including providing funding
to CDOs that run their own programs. She also stated that legacy homeowner support data will
be incorporated into the city and state’s review of whole block outcomes. Chair Day asked Ms.
McMillan whether she was more concerned with the impact of legacy homeowner support
programs or with the programmatic efficiency. Ms. McMillan stated that she was interested in
data on both aspects. Chair Day stated that additional effort could be placed in mapping the
geographic distribution and alignment of legacy homeowner investments in the VRPGs. Mr.
Mocksten asked whether any additional progress has been made in mapping BRNI funds. Ms.
Snyder stated that for BRNI programs like legacy homeowner support, organizations receive
funds for a program, but may not know the addresses until later reporting cycles. She stated
that BRNI funds can be mapped at the neighborhood level at the time of award, but mapping the



funds to specific addresses would happen after final reports are submitted. Mr. Mocksten asked
what sort of tracking could be done for BRNI in order to allow for easy comparisons with BVRI.
Ms. Snyder stated that BRNI investments are not currently tracked at the property level as they
are with BVRI, but the goal is to begin tracking by property address. Mr. Gallagher stated that
since BRNI funding is both operating and capital funding, there will be some expenditures that
do not link back to a specific address. Delegate Smith asked whether the spatial analysis has
been conducted to help analyze the relationship between BVRI investments and state Transit
Oriented Development investments. Ms. Snyder stated that the Maryland DHCD is producing
those maps now. Delegate Smith stated that such analysis would reflect positively on Broadway
East.

Ms. Snyder presented the monthly BVRC BVRI Reporting Framework. She stated that Maryland
DHCD will track Property Progress and Whole Block Outcomes, Neighborhood Change, and
Beneficiaries. Ms. McMillan asked whether the state would track displacement as a component
of neighborhood change. Ms. Snyder stated that while tracking displacement is difficult, the
state could potentially track displacement risk, though it is not currently prepared to do so. Ms.
McMillan stated that she may provide a recommendation on tracking displacement in the future.

Ms. Snyder continued presenting the monthly BVRC BVRI Reporting Framework. Ms. McMillan
asked for additional information on why some properties have been designated as Phase 1. Ms.
Snyder stated that the Phase 1 properties are those that CDOs determined they would begin
working on. Mr. McGuigan asked if stabilizations and demolitions would be tracked in reference
to whole block outcomes. Ms. Snyder stated that if a property is stabilized it does not abate the
VBN so that progress would not be tracked in the VBN abatement category, but demolition
projects would contribute to that figure. Ms. McMillan asked for additional information on the
types of assistance that CDOs can receive through the available technical assistance funding.
Ms. Snyder noted that the technical assistance funding could be used to seed project
management positions with the CDOs or hire accountants to help manage funding
disbursement. Senator McCray asked to be included in the first BVRI CDO cohort meeting.
Delegate Smith asked for the entire BVRC to be invited. Ms. Snyder confirmed that the BVRC
members could be invited to the quarterly CDO BVRI cohort meetings. Ms. McMillan asked
whether the state would track completed whole blocks. Ms. Snyder confirmed that whole blocks
completed through state investments would be tracked.

FY26 Annual Report

Chair Day presented on the FY26 Reinvest Baltimore Annual Report. Delegate Smith stated
that she recommends a one-page infographic to be included with the annual report to support
public understanding. Chair Day stated that the focus of the annual report will be to convey
information to the Governor and the General Assembly, but that a one-page infographic is a
good inclusion. Ms. McMillan asked what would be included in the description of the MCIC
partnership in the annual report. Chair Day stated this would be a description of the formation of
this partnership with MCIC and reporting to the Governor that using MCIC to more efficiently
award state funds was a new creation this year. Ms. McMillan stated that she would like
descriptions of how community partnerships will be involved in Reinvest Baltimore to be



included in the annual report. Chair Day asked for additional detail and desired inclusions to be
shared with Maryland DHCD staff. Mr. Gallagher stated that future annual reports should serve
as updates to an operating plan that shows additional actuals. He also stated that the annual
plan should be voted on by the BVRC members in future years to demonstrate their support.
Chair Day stated that the FY26 Reinvest Baltimore Annual Plan is more like an operating work
plan than an overall strategy. He also stated he agrees with Mr. Gallagher’s view of future
annual reports.

Chair Day continued presenting the FY26 Reinvest Baltimore Annual Report. He asked Mr.
Mocksten for support in providing information on the City’s Affordable Housing TIF. Mr Mocksten
confirmed that this could be provided. Mr. Thomas asked whether information on the future
creation of the Industrial Development Authority (IDA) should be included. Mr. Mocksten stated
that there is likely not information worth including in the FY26 report, but future annual reports
will likely include information on the IDA.

Chair Day continued presenting the FY26 Reinvest Baltimore Annual Report. Ms. McMillan
asked for the timeline for creation and review of the draft annual report. Ms. Snyder stated that
the draft would be completed after feedback on the outline is received, but that she has not
received any feedback on the draft outline from BVRC members. She stated that she hopes to
complete the draft of the annual report by September 12th and circulate amongst the BVRC
members for review.

Working Group Updates

Chair Day invited Mr. Thomas and Ms. McMillan to provide an update from the Finance Working
Group. Mr. Thomas stated that the group considered models for the creation of private
investment funds at their last meeting. Ms. McMillan stated that the workgroup also considered
interest rate reduction models. Chair Day asked if Forsyth is considering the influx of available
public funding in their analysis of private market opportunities in the vacancy reduction effort.
Mr. Thomas stated that Forsyth recommended consideration of working capital for developers,
construction financing, assistance for builders to not also need to serve as landlords, and
innovative homeownership models. Mr. Thomas stated that different market conditions require
different forms of private market funding, but that many examples exist of several partner
organizations collaborating on the creation of a fund that fits a specific market. Delegate Smith
asked whether the size of the Baltimore City philanthropic network affects the possible designs
of the private fund. Mr. Thomas stated that if the argument that now is the time to invest in
Baltimore can be made, financiers that were previously skeptical will be more likely to invest.

Chair Day invited Ms. Blauer to provide an update from the Data Working Group. Ms. Blauer
stated that the Data Working Group has focused on the outline of the Annual Report as well as
the creation of outcome baselines for the vacancy reduction effort. She also presented an
updated data request list. Chair Day asked for additional information on the geographic unit of
analysis at which Ms. Blauer envisions tracking successful vacancy reduction strategies. Ms.
Blauer stated that the most granular possible would be best which will likely mean the census
block level for most statistics. Delegate Smith asked whether Baltimore Neighborhoods Indicator



Association’s (BNIA) Vital Signs information can be incorporated into the analysis. Ms. Blauer
stated that several non-GDP driven indicators can be used to assess quality of life, but using
them requires determining what eventual outcome is desired in each community.

Chair Day invited Mr. Gallagher to provide an update from the Delivery Chain Working Group.
Mr. Gallagher presented on the identified acquisition and disposition processes that the Delivery
Chain Working Group has considered. Chair Day asked Mr. Gallagher to elaborate on the
interconnected nature of the processes. Mr. Gallagher stated that many properties will be part of
several processes as the VBN is abated. Chair Day stated that there may be value in a larger
diagram showing the interconnected processes and the property throughput of each. Mr.
Gallagher stated that the complicated nature of each process makes placing all of the process
onto a single physical graphic difficult, but a solely digital presentation may be possible. Ms.
McMillan asked for the timeframe for the in rem foreclosure process. Chair Day responded that
the process matrix shows in rem foreclosure takes 180 to 210 days. Ms. McMillan stated that
the 58 reported in rem acquisitions in a 3-month time period each took then 6 to 7 months. She
asked how many in rem acquisitions are expected in FY26. Vice Chair Kennedy stated that over
800 in rem acquisitions are planned. Chair Day stated that additional review of targets and goals
as actual production is accomplished will include efforts to improve processes. Mr. Gallagher
stated that BVRI-funded properties will allow for better tracking of timelines, as each property
can serve as a test case to compare against expectations.

Closing

Chair Day adjourned the meeting.



	Baltimore Vacants Reinvestment Council (BVRC) 
	Minutes 
	Call to Order  
	Adoption of Meeting Minutes 
	Monthly Production Report 
	FY26 BVRI  
	FY26 Annual Report 
	Working Group Updates 
	Closing 



